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Vendor Questions and AOC Answers 

Part 1 
Question 1. Given the end of the year holidays in December and January, we face a high 

potential for a lack of reference availability to reply to Appendix F: 
Organizational Reference Questionnaire.  Is NM AOC open to a two week 
extension to provide vendors and their references more time to respond to the 
RFP? 

Answer 1. The deadline to submit proposals has been extended to January 29, 2021 by 
4pm.  See Amendment #1 Adjusting II.A. Sequence of Events for more 
information.  

Q2.  Related to requirement E.1: 

A. For the integration with the motor vehicle division: 
a. What are the business processes that are being facilitated by this 

integration?  For instance, is the solution expected to look up priors from the 
MVD for the purpose of calculating fines?  Is the solution expected to report 
disposition data to MVD?  Are there other processes that would be 
accomplished through this integration? 

  



b. Can you describe how the solution would be expected to integration with the 
MVD, technically?  (i.e. database access, web services, mainframe 
integration, etc.) 

A2. AN ANSWER WILL BE PROVIDED AT A LATER TIME 

Q3. With regards to integrating with the court’s custom-built applications: 

A. Can you list the solutions to be integrated with, and the business processes that 
would be facilitated by the integration? 

B. Can you describe how the solution would be expected to integrate with each 
application, technically?  (i.e. database access, web services, mainframe integration, 
etc.) 

A3. AN ANSWER WILL BE PROVIDED AT A LATER TIME 

Q4. Are the case counts listed in Section B background information for the Metropolitan 
Court only? If so, should pricing be provided only for the Metropolitan Court pilot? 

A4. The case counts listed in Section B are for Metropolitan Court only.  Pricing should be 
provided only for the contemplated pilot for Metropolitan Court. 

Q5. Other than parking and traffic, are there any other case types the AOC would like to 
utilize ODR for? If others are desired, can an approximate annual case count per case 
type be provided? 

A5. Currently, AOC is only interested in utilizing ODR for those cases listing in the FRP. 

Q6. Is there a prescribed format for the response or are we simply to respond to the 
specifications?  

A6. There is no prescribed format for the responses submitted for this RFP. 

Q7. I have attached the Appendix B Acknowledgment of Receipt Form, which does not 
appear to include a signature line as required, so I have added one with an /s/ signature. 
Is this sufficient? 

A7. Yes, that is sufficient. 

Q8. This concerns paragraph 15 (Contract Terms and Conditions) of General Requirements 
under Article C. 

We have reviewed the above paragraph and the Draft Contract included in as Appendix 
C and note that the Draft Contract appears to be tailored to delivery of professional 
services but does not include terms typically found in software-as-a-service (SAAS) 
offerings, which we believe is the most appropriate method to deliver a solution to the 



Agency.  Missing from the Draft Contract are the terms of support, software level 
agreements, ownership of the software being provided, subscription fees, and the like.   

We understand that we are discouraged from making exceptions to the terms of the 
Draft Contract. 

Based on the foregoing, our question is:  Will the inclusion of our standard form of SAAS 
terms and conditions (including support and maintenance terms and software level 
agreement terms) as a supplement to the Draft Contract for the SAAS portion be 
considered to be a material deviation and subject to disqualification of our proposal? 

A8. The draft contract included in Appendix C is provided as an example only.  AOC and 
the winning vendor will enter into a mutually agreement upon contract that is 
appropriate for the services and/or solutions that will address the needs of AOC as 
described in the FRP. 

Q9. What is the estimated number of internal users of this system?  

A9.  As an estimate, 10 to 50 internal users. 

Q10. How many concurrent external users (citation recipients) are expected for this system?  

A10. As an estimate, approximately 35,000 external users per year. 

Q11. Any other external users besides citation recipients will need access to the system? Such 
as law enforcement agencies, attorneys etc. 

A11. Yes, it is contemplated that personnel from law enforcement agencies and 
prosecuting attorneys will need access to the system.  

Q12. While we understand the importance and urgency of this project, will AOC consider 
granting a 1-week extension to the proposal submission date to allow vendors 
additional time to develop their bids? 

A12. See Answer 1. 

Q13. Will there be a multi-award for different aspects of the project? 

A13. It is not contemplated that this will be a multi-award contract. 

Q14. What is the overall budget for this project? 

A14. No budget amount has been specified for this project.  AOC is committed to funding 
this project based upon the negotiated costs with the winning vendor. 

Q15. How many total law enforcement agencies will be providing citation information? 

A15. Currently, it is contemplated that eight law enforcement agencies will be filing 
citations that will qualify for ODR. 



Q16. Is the citation information coming from one single system for all law enforcement 
agencies or there are multiple systems? 

A16. The citation information will reside in Tyler Technologies Odyssey case management 
system. 

Q17. Do these citation information providing system have API or other integration 
mechanism available? Please provide details of the mechanisms available. 

A17. Refer to A16 and A21. 

Q18. How many educational services agencies (schools) systems need to be integrated with 
this system? 

A18. AN ANSWER WILL BE PROVIDED AT A LATER TIME 

Q19. Do these educational services systems have API or other integration mechanism 
available? Please provide details of the mechanisms available. 

A19. AN ANSWER WILL BE PROVIDED AT A LATER TIME 

Q20. Please provide details of third party payment provide which needs to be integrated with 
this system. 

A20. The New Mexico Judiciary recently purchased a payment system from Lexis Nexis that 
has not yet been implemented in Odyssey.  However, offerors should include in their 
responses any information they believe would be useful regarding other third party 
payment systems. 

Q21. Please provide details of Tyler Technologies Odyssey case management system’s 
integration capabilities such as APIs, data extract/import/load mechanism etc. 

A21. Yes, there are API’s and export mechanisms available for Odyssey. Tyler Technologies 
has documentation for the API’s. 

 

Q22. What is the expectation from the vendor on providing customer service and technical 
support? Is it only for internal users? 

A22. It is expected that the vendor will provide support to any user, internal or external, 
who needs assistance with navigating/using the system.   

Q23. How many court personnel and other users will require a training for new system? 

A23. As an estimate, up to 50 internal users. 

Q24. How many total languages should this system support? Is English and Spanish ONLY 
acceptable for phase 1? 



A24. It is contemplated that the solution will be available to as many users as possible, 
either initially or over time.  English and Spanish only is acceptable for the initial phase 
of the pilot. 

Q25. Are you expecting mobile access of this system for both internal users (court personnel) 
and external users (citation recipients etc.)? 

A25. It is contemplated that mobile access of the system must be available for external 
users, but not necessarily needed for internal users.   

Q26. Do you currently have a knowledge database? If yes, do you intend to continue to use it 
or migrate to new system? 

A26. Metropolitan Court provides information for the public on its website.  No other 
knowledge database is available.   

Q27. If you are planning to migrate knowledge database functionality to the new system, 
then how many knowledge articles are there and how many knowledge categories/sub-
categories exist? 

A27. See A26. 

Q28. Do you have a data analytics tool that you intend to use or expecting a data analytics 
tool as part of this new system? 

A28. Yes, the Judiciary has a license for Socrata.        

Q29. Do you have an eSignature system in place already that you intend to use with this new 
system or expecting that eSignature function will be part of the new system? 

A29. Yes, within Odyssey the Judiciary has e-signature capabilities, but outside of Odyssey 
(e.g. in ODR system) there is no e-signature support. 

Q30. Appendix F states that “this Questionnaire is to be submitted to the State of New  
Mexico, Administrative Office of the Courts via e-mail.”  Can you please clarify who 
should submit the form?  Should the “business reference” send it via email directly to 
the Procurement Manager (separate from the proposal submission) or should the 
Offeror send it via email with the proposal submission? 

A30. Please have the business reference email the Organizational Reference Questionnaire 
directly to Mateo Page (procurement manager) at aocmsp@nmcourts.gov.  The 
procurement manager will promptly inform the offeror when questionnaires are 
received. 
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